
1



2



 NICASIO SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

MINUTES 
 

~ Regular Meeting ~ 
 

Thursday, March 30, 2017   5:00 PM  
  

Nicasio School Library   5555 Nicasio Valley Road, Nicasio CA 
 

1. Initial Matters  
a. Call to Order at 5pm 
b. Roll Call In attendance: Trustees Madeleine Sloane, Michelle Rutledge and Jason Snell. 

Also in attendance: Superintendent Tom Lohwasser, Principal Barbara Snekkevik, 
Interim Business Official Margie Bonardi and Office Manager Mikki McIntyre 
 

2. Open Session Agenda 
a. Patriotic Moment in recognition of the opening of the 2017 Baseball Season   
b. Approval and Adoption of Open Session Agenda  

Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve and adopt Open Session Agenda Vote: 3/0 
Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
3. Public Comment There was no public comment.   

 
4. Consent Agenda   

a. Approval of Minutes: March 1, 2017 Regular Meeting of Board of Trustees 
b. Ratify Warrants Paid: Jan. 27 – Mar 23, 2017   
c. Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints (Jan-Mar 2017) 

Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Consent Agenda Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, 
Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
5. Reports & Announcements Information 

a. Water System Update There was no update. 
b. Principal’s Report Principal Snekkevik provided her report and added the following:  

• Principal Snekkevik said that on Professional Development Day (March 13th), the 
entire staff met to review last year’s LCAP goals. In the afternoon, certificated 
staff prepared for this year’s state assessments.  

•  She is ascertaining where the District is in the ELA adoption process. She has 
chosen teacher leaders in each area who will research curriculum options and 
share that information with their colleagues.  

• K/1/2 Teacher Ellian Klein recently attended a social-emotional workshop, 
“Capturing Kids’ Hearts,” and will present what she learned at the next PLC staff 
meeting.  

• John Carney, Director of Restorative Services & Marin County Youth Court with 
the Marin YMCA, will visit campus after spring break and provide staff with an 
overview of his restorative practices program.  

• The District has signed a contract with Troy Pearce of AYS Services to provide 
monitoring of the septic system.   

3

office
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item #4b.



c. Superintendent’s Report Supt. Lohwasser reported the following:  
• Supt. Lohwasser acknowledged the personal loss by Barbara Snekkevik of her 

mother, who recently passed away.  Condolences were extended to Barbara and 
her family. 

• Supt. Lohwasser attended the State Budget Overview conference at MCOE on 
March 29th. He summarized the governor’s budget as a downgrade compared to 
the January projections, noting that the budget goal will not be met and NSD is 
very lucky that it does not rely on the state for its funding.  He added that 
increased pension costs will continue to be of great concern to every district in 
the state. In response to a trustee’s inquiry, he said NDS’s pension liabilities will 
be discussed at the next Board meeting.  

• The trustees were encouraged to join Supt. Lohwasser at MCSBA’s Annual 
Superintendent –Trustee Dinner on March 27. He said the event will showcase 
many innovative programs taking place at high schools around the county. 
Trustee Rutledge agreed to attend the dinner.   

• Supt. Lohwasser anticipates presenting a plan for business and superintendent 
services at the next Board meeting.   

d. Trustees’ Report There was no report. 
 

6. Business Services   
a. Consider Resolution 2016-17 #6 Authorization to Sign on Behalf of the Governing 

Board for 2016-17  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Resolution 2016-17 #6 Authorization to Sign 
on Behalf of the Governing Board for 2016-17 ROLL CALL Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, 
Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 
 

7. Administrative/Governance 
a. Approve Enrollment Capacities for Interdistrict Attendance Requests into Nicasio 

School District for 2017-18 Discussion: Supt. Lohwasser explained that there are two 
facets to enrollment capacities as they relate to IDT requests into NSD: classroom/grade 
level and program.  In response to the Board’s request that Principal Snekkevik solicit 
feedback from teachers regarding classroom/grade level capacities, she reported that 
the staff recommended - from both a teaching perspective and a social pool standpoint - 
that the capacities remain unchanged.  She noted the importance of maintaining 
classroom capacities due to the challenges of teaching three grade levels at one time. 
With regard to (special education) program capacities, Principal Snekkevik said the 
District needs to make sure it can serve the needs of its current special education 
students before considering new IDT students. She said the District can continue serving 
all current students for 2017-18, but is concerned about exceeding program capacities.  
Supt. Lohwasser noted that the program “caps” were marginally exceeded during 2016-
17 due to the fact that enrollment dropped slightly, thereby reducing program 
capacities. He said that based on staff input, he recommends maintaining existing 
classroom/grade level and program capacities for the 2017-18 school year, with a slight 
variance to retain current special education students.  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Enrollment Capacities for Interdistrict 
Attendance Requests into Nicasio School District for 2017-18 by maintaining existing 
capacities, with a slight program capacity adjustment to accommodate IDT renewal 
requests for special education students.  Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: 
None 

4



 
b. Approve 2017-18 Annual Calendar Discussion: With regard to a trustee’s concerns 

about the number of early dismissal days in November, Principal Snekkevik reported 
feedback from staff that although parent-teacher conferences result in several days of 
early dismissal, that is the optimal time of year to meet with parents. She added that 
the staff did not feel student learning is impacted by that schedule. Supt. Lohwasser 
noted that although no calendar is perfect, efforts are made to align feeder schools as 
much as possible, and that students are getting their required 180 days of instruction.  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve 2017-18 Annual Calendar Vote: 3/0 Ayes: 
Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 
 

8. Correspondence   
a. Re: Request from School Districts to Move to Even-numbered Year Elections, Diane 

Patterson, Marin County Assistant Clerk of the Board, March 15, 2017 
 

9. Conclusion 
a. Agenda Planning   

• Budget items 
• NSD Pension Update 
• Update on Superintendent and Business Services 
• LCAP    
• Consideration of IDT requests for 2017-18 
• Water system update 

b. Adjournment  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to adjourn meeting at 5:52pm Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, 
Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Mikki McIntyre 
 
 
    
    Unadopted         Adopted        

________________________________________________ 
             Madeleine Sloane, Clerk 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



Untitled event 
 

5555 Nicasio Valley Road, Nicasio, CA 94946 
 415.662.2184 /  415.662.2250 / www.nicasioschool.org

 
 
Date:  5/4/2017 
 
To:   Nicasio Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Barbara Snekkevik 
 
Subject:  Principal’s Report  
 

 
 
Events & Activities 

• Open House, April 6th   
o Well attended despite stormy conditions, including several incoming Kindergarteners 

and their families. Power was lost for the last 20 minutes. Community Talent Show 
was cancelled due to intermittent power outages. Rescheduled for Friday, April 21st.  
 

• “Giving Through Youth” West Marin Fund presentations, April 7th   
o Grades 3/4/5 worked in pairs to present seven local nonprofits (including Audubon 

Canyon Ranch, the Bolinas Children’s Center, and Institute for Bird Populations) 
o Middle school students voted for recipients of $3,000 donation 
o Three-way tie (Turtle Island Restoration Network, St. Mary’s Catholic Church, Bolinas 

Children’s Center). Each recipient will receive $1,000 donation. 
o Featured in the Point Reyes Light (April 13, 2017) 

 
• Rescheduled Talent Show, April 21st    

o Fun evening for the community that featured 14 acts, as well as artwork displayed 
 

• Annual Parent Survey April 17th to 26th  
o Available on-line and hardcopy by request (in office) 
o Results are still being collected (hardcopy, Spanish version) 

 
• Annual Student Survey, April 17th to 21st   

o Administered on-line to students in grades 5-8 
o Results analyzed by staff on April 26th  (see below) 

 
• Third Trimester progress reports sent home Thursday, April 27th  

 
• CAASPP testing, May 2nd to May 11th  

o English Language Arts portions completed this week 
o 97% participation rate (1 parent exemption) 

• Owl Box update… six owlets were evaluated and tagged on Tuesday, May 2nd  

14

office
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item #5b.

office
Typewritten Text



o Students were able to observe process and see owlets outside box 
o One owlet has injured talon and was taken to Wildcare for rehabilitation  

 
• Staff  Appreciation Luncheon, May 4th  

o Organized by the Parent Club. Lunch prepared by Gisela Alvarado and Laura Flores. 
 

• Night of the Coyote, Nicasio Foundation Fundraiser this Saturday, May 6th  
 

 
Staff Updates 

• Restorative Practices overview presented by Don Carney, Marin YMCA Director of 
Restorative Services and Marin County Youth Court (April 19th ) 

o Staff is interested in piloting school-wide social emotional curriculum 
o Added as action item to LCAP 

 
• Principal’s Breakfast April 21st   

o Met with principals of Drake, White Hill, Lagunitas and Bolinas-Stinson 
 

• Staff (certificated and classified) conducted review of student survey results (April 26th ) 
o Highlights include: 

 100% of students gave positive response to feeling safe at school 
 96% positive response for school maintaining positive environment 
 90% positive response for “teachers care about me” 
 80% report “enjoy coming to school” 

o Areas for further review: 
 30% reported (7 students) “sometimes” receive put-downs, name-calling 
 26% (6 students) reported “sometimes” victim of targeted bullying 

 
• Administrative Professionals’ Day, April 26th  

o Fun opportunity to recognize Mikki and all she does for our school 
 

• On-going collaboration with Margie Bonardi and Laura Trahan of MCOE to complete LCAP 
draft.  

o Parent consultant group will meet in late May (date TBD) 
o Final review of draft by staff May 24th  
o Present to Board for initial review June 1st  

 
 
Site Updates 

• 2017 Facilities Inspection Tool completed by Barbara and Mikki on April 19th . Nicasio 
maintains “exemplary” status. 
 

• Facility Use  
o Saturday April 29th Parking lot was used as rest stop for AIDS/Life Cycle ride (Approx. 

500 participants. Practice ride for SF-LA ride in June.) 
o Saturday May 6th Parking lot will be used for Organs R Us Golden Gate Relay (Approx. 175 

participants  

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37




